) & ASSOCIATES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SU TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SU Toll Road Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controis, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Actand the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
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statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2017, and its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matter

7. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these standalone
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which were audited by us, on
which we expressed an unmodified opinion vide our report dated May 14, 2016 and May
18, 2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the company in transition to Ind AS have been audited by
us.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
8. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in
Annexure - “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

9. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31s March,
2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate repart
in “Annexure - B”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material
impact its financial position:

i} Based upon the assessment made by the company, there are no material foreseeable
losses on its long term contracts that may require any provisioning

iii} In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit the reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

iv) The company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to

holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying
on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in
accordance with books of aceount maintained by the Company and as produced
to us by the Management - Refer Note 34;

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

I

-

Narendra mdal

7
Partner

“  MNo. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to the members of SU Toll Road Private

Limited for the year ended March 31,2017

i)

iii)

vii}

(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, with respect to its
fixed assets comprising of Intangible Assets representing toll collection rights.

{(b) The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable,

(¢) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no immovable
properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly the reporting
requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities and therefore does
not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (ii) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under sub-clause {a}, (b) and
(c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (iv] of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records
and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in
India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
- 2017 for a period of nlg_r_gg_l}gn six months from the date they became payable.
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viii)

xi)

xii)

Xiii)

%iv)
xv)

xXvi)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no applicable
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information and
explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial Institutions or Debenture Holders. The
company does not have any borrowings from government,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for which they were
taken. Further, the company has not raised any funds by way of initial / further public offer.

Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given to us by
the management, we report that we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the
company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting requirements under

clause (xi} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 178 of the Act
where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not required to be registered under Section 45 ~ IA of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

{_~C4/Narendra Khandal
artner

M No. 065025

Mumbaj, April 14, 2017
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, to the members of SU Toll Road Private

Limited for the year ended March 31,2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SU Toll Road Private
Limited ("the Company”} as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

“in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Asscciates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

OC ' Narendra Khandal

artner
M No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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' SU TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31, 2017




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Balance Sheet

- Date : 141h April 2017
Place : Mumbai

Prakash Khedekar Zarana Patel
Company Secretary
Date : 14th April 2017

Place : Mumbai

Chief Financial ofﬁcer

¥ Millions
Particulars As at _ As at As at
; Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 ‘April 1, 2015 -
ASSETS
Non-current assets :
(&) Intangible assets : .4 8,041.22 8,204,08 '8,358.13
(b) Financial Assets : - : )
Other Financial Assefs - - R : 5d - 192.78 463.60
(¢} Deferred tax assets (net} : 27 360.53 355.36 192.74
(d) Other non - current assets 6 0.37 .77 0.87
Current assets |
(a) Financial Assets : L o C
“:(i) Cashand cash equivalents  ~ =" o ‘53 64.06 44.06 ~5824
(i} Bank balances other than (ii) above 5b 442.49 248.42 95,08
(iiiy Other financial asset ) 5¢ 109.83 161.35 176.22
(b} Current Tax Assets (Net} o . L ‘ Ca : . 2.02 2.27
{c) Other current assets o . 7 144.00 190,07 130.76
Total Assets 9,162.50 9,398.93 9.477.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY ) .
(a) Equity share capital _ ) . , o ) 8 184.12 P 184.12 184.12 -
{b) Other equity : . ) N g 1,482.79 1,812.70 2.151:60
Total Equity 1,666.91 1,996.82 2,336.72
LIABILITIES
- Non-current liabilities
(a} Financial Liabitities S . o
{i) Borrowings 10a 6,508.19 6,510.42 6,652.15
(iiy Other financial liabilities t2b - 8.78 5.04
{b) Provisions 13k 1.96 75777 473.17
Current liabilities o
(a)-Financial Liabililies
(i} Trade payables 11 39.70 39.05 25.03
(ii) Other financial liabilities ‘ 12a- 34.56 50.90 51.74
(b} Other current liabilities i ) 14 3.59 35.14 .. 35,02
(c) Provisions . 13a 891.32: :0.04 .03
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) : 16.26 - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 9,162.50 . 9,398.93 9,477.91
The accompanying summary of significant accountlng policies and other explanatory |nformta|on (notes) are an |ntegral part of the
Financial Statements .
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For MK P S & Associates ) : For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants : - e
Firm's Regn. No. 302014E : :
e
(_/Nar dra Khandal Kaushik Pal C :
-7 Pattner o o Director Directol : 13
Mémbarship No. @ 065025 ~ ~ DIN:05237230 © DIN:G71 03?1 \ 5'r
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SU Toll Road Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

T Miltions
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
_ ' . March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operations 15 886.57 825.90
Cther Income 18 ' 64.65 87.19
Total Income 951221 913.09
' Expenses
Toll Gperation and Maintainence expenses 17 270.67 384.53
Employee benefits expense 18 11.00: ] 7.85
.Finance costs | ' 19. .. 78483 o 82715
Amortization expense 4 ' - 162.87 154.05,
- Other expenses 20 28.31 33.00
~ Total expenses : i 1,257 B7 - 1,406.56
Profit / (loss) before tax " (306.46) (493.48)
Tax expense
Current tax 27.87 8.00
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (4.91) (162.61) -
‘Profit/{Loss) for the year - {329.42) (338.87)
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) items that will not be reclass:fred
to profit or loss ! .
Remeasurements of net deﬁned (0.74) (0.04)
benefit plans : Gains / {Loss)} 8
(i} Income tax relating to items that will not
_be reclassified to profit or loss | o o
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (0.26) .oty
Other Comprehensive Income/ (l.oss) for the year (0.49) -{0.03)
Total Comprehenswe Income / (L.oss) for the year (329.91) (338.90)
Earnmgs perequity share of 10 each : : '
Basic & Diluted 30 (25.83} (28.57)

The accompanying summary of S|gn|f|cant accountsng pohmes and other explanatory informtaion (notes) are an integral part of the

Financial Statements

' This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to inour report of even date

ForMKP S & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 302014E

L’? = IS
Cyrendra Khaﬁaal '

artner )
Membership No. : 085025
Date ; t4th April 2017
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of

t_he. Board

Kaushik Pal
Director
DIN.052372E

: f)rr'ercfor&
DIN;071303

,fwh

e

Prakash Khedekar
~ Company Secretary
- Date : 14th April 2017
Place : Mumbai

Zarana Patel
Chief Financial officer
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SU Toll Road Private Limited
Cash flow Statement

Z Millions

Particuiars

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended

March 31,2016 -

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
- Profit before tax .
Adjustments for:
Amortisation expenses 162.87 . 154,05
Interest income {62.53) {B.90)
Dividend incorme . {(1.83) - . (5.03)
Intérest expense 784.83 827.15
_ 577.08 473.74
Cash Generated from Operations before
working capital changes
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets axcept for investments 89.04 132.35
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 46.07 (59.31)
Increase/{decrease) in frade payables 0.65 14.02
Increase/{decrease) in other financial fiabilities 13.95 1.95
increase/(decrease) in provisions 96,76 . 227.93
Increasef(decrease) in other current hab[lmes {31.54) 0.11
214.93 317.06
Cash generated from operations 782.01 790.80
Taxes {paid} net of refunds (8.59) (7.76)
Net cash generated from ‘operating activ_itips - [A] 782.42 783.04
8 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: :
Purchase/sale proceeds of intangible assets (including . mtanglb[e 3.69 " 3.83
assest under development) ) o
Purchase of current investments (net of proceeds) 1.63 . 5.03,
Interest received 23,72 8.90
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities - [B] 29.03 17.76
€ CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of long term borrowings (48.40) {48.40}
Interest paid . (743.05) {766.59)
Net cash used in financing activities - [C] (791,45) {814.59)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C] 20.01 - {14.18) -
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 44.06 58.24
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year : 84.06 44.06
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
- Balances with banks - in Current accounts 61,71 40.98
Cash on hand 2.35 3.08
Total Cash and cash equivalents 64.06 ° 44.06

(306.46)

Cae3sz

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set outin Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash

Flows'.

The accompanylng summary of 5|gmf cant accountrng policies and other explanatory informtaion (notes} are an mtegral part ofthe |

Financial Statements:

This.is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For MK P S & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No. 302014E
- R

For and on behalf of the Board

‘" Marendra Khandal Kaushik Pal
/zgrtner Director
Membership No, ; 065025. DIN:Q5237230
Date : 14th April 2017
Place : Mumbai

Prakash Khedekar

L]
Zarana Ratel

~ Company Secretary Chief Financial officer
Date ; 14th April 2017

Flace : Mumbai |
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. SU Toll Road Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

T Millions

Balance at the

Date : 14th April 2017
~ Plage : Mumbai -

é&
DIN:052372
i

Prakash Khedekar

Company Secretary

5 v ¥

e

Date : 14th April 2017

Place : Mumbai

Zarana Patel

Chief Financial officer

Balance at the Changes in
beginning of the equity share end of the year
Notes year capital during the
year
 |As at Aprit 1, 2015 184.12. - 184.12
As at March 31, 2018 a 184.12 - 184,12
As at March 31, 2017 184.12 - 184.12
_ - T Millions
B. OTHER EQUITY : |
Equity
Component of Reserves and Surplus
A Note compoud Securities Retained Debenture Total
- financial . . .
. Premium Earnings Redemption
instruments . Ao :
{note Ba} Reserve {note 8b) Reserve
{nete 9c) {note 9d)
Balance at April 01, 2018 6.60 1,938.68 191.18 15.14 2,151.60
Profit for the year - : {338.87) : {338.87)
- Debenture Redemption Reserve - © o {17.52) 17.52 .
Other cnmprehensive income for the year (0.03) : (0.03)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (356.41) 17.52 (338.90}
Tra_néaqﬁon with owners in their capacity as
owners ;. : ) )
[ssue of equity shares - -
Dividend Paid -
Balance at 31st March 2016 6.50 1,938.68 {165.24} 32.66 1,812.70
|
Balance at April 01, 2018 6.60 1,938.68 (165.24) 32.66 1,812.70\
Profit for the year (320.42) {329.42)
Debenture Redemption Reserve (14.84) 14.84 -
Other comprehensive income for the year- (0.49) (0.49} :
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (344.75)| 14.84 (329.91)
" |Transaction with owners in their capacity as
owners @ C :
Issue of equity shares “ -
Dividend Paid -
Balance at 31st March, 2017 6.60 1,838.68 (509.99) 47.50 1,482.79
. Asper our report of even date attached
For M K P S & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants ) LY
Firm's Regn. No. 302014E
| amatan,,
B, ) -
) /' Ny D :
endra Khandal Kaushik Pal " % Madar, Biyani !
ariner Birector X : !Iﬁ Directo .
Membership No. : 065025 11 DIN:G7150371 |
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SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate information

The Company has been awarded on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis, strengthening of the existing
carnageway from Km. .0.313 to ¥m. 136. 670 on the Salem = Ulundurpet section of National Highway No. 68
(NH-68) in the State of Tamll Nadu and widening thereof to 4 lanes and its |mprovement opertation -and:
maintenance through a concession on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) bhasis under the concession agreement
dated July 19, 2007, with National Highways Authority of India. The concession agreement is for a year of 25
years from January 15, 2008, being the appointed date stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement. The company
isa subsadiary of Rellance Infrastructure Ltd. Toll Collection Started from  July 28th ,2012. ‘

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements of the Company compnses of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss,
Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity, a summary of signifi cant accountrng pohcres

" notes and other explanatory information. .

Note 3: Summary of Slgmﬁcant accounting policies

3.1

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)’
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companiés (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements Bave been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures marndated by|Schedule
Hl of the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations. These| Financial
Statements are the first Financial Statements of the Company under Ind AS The Financial Statéments up
to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards nofified under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2008 {as amended) and other relevant provrsmns of the Act.

'These Flnanc:|ai Staternents have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except fof certain assets and’

liabilities which have been measured at fair value. For the purpose of preparation of these| Financial
Statements, the transition date to Ind AS is considered as April 1, 2015 :

_ These Flnanmal Statements are presented in ¥ Miltions, except where otherwise lndlcated

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 '‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ have been published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
{MCA} but are not yet effective. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for.reporting useful information to users
of the financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from an entity’s contract with customers. Ind AS 115 supersedes other revenue standards i.e. Ind
AS 11 and Ind AS 18 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Management has undertaken an
assessment of the impact of thns standard and does not believe that the impact would be materiai.

Current versus non-current c_lassification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non- current

classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operatmg cycle

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

=  Cash or ¢ash equ:valent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at teast
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are tlassified as non-current,
A Ilabrhty is current when

. Itis expected to be settled in normal cperatlng cycle
* ltis due to be settled within twefve monihs after the reporting period, or

. w Thereis o unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Ilablllty for at least twelve months after

_the reporting period
Al other Iiabiiities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operatmg cycle is the' time between the acquisition of assets. for processing and their re Ilzatlon |n

‘cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

\
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3.2

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency
Mems included in the -Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency.of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates {‘the functional currency’). Theg Financia!

Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (?) which is the Companys functional and prese,ntation

currengy.

Transactions and balances
Faoreign currency transactions are franslated into the functtonal currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting| from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in forsign currencies are recognlsed in the Statement of Profit and Loss with an

e except[on of the followmg -

Under Ind AS 21 exchange differences arising on the translation/setiement of non-monetary item shou!d'_'

be treated as jncome or foss in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for

" -existing long term ‘foreign currency non-monetary items wherein the Company can continue the policy

adopted for treatment. of exchange differences arising on !ong-term foreign currency monetary items

B pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset for items recognized on or before March 31, 2015.

33

~onthe presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

For any new long term foreign currency non-monetary item recognized from or after first Ind AS financial

reporting period, deferralfamortization of exchange difference will not be allowed, rather the Company wul_

appfy Ind AS 21 for recognltlon of gains and losses.-

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in |an ofderly-

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based

N

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

-'The_principal or.the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. .

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
" use when prtclng the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest, -

A fair value measiirement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market partlc:pants ability to
generate economic:benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by seliing it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

" The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
.data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing:

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements: are:

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows based on the Iowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: PR

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the (fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sngmfacant to the falr vallie -
measurement is unobservable . .

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in'the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level mput that is sngnlflcant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period. :

The Company’s Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured
at fair value.
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relevant notes _

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movemenis in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this

analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreemg ‘the -

|nformat|on inthe valuatron computation to contracts and other relevant documents

| The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and Ilabllrty with relevant

external sources to determine whether the change is reascnabie.

For the purpose of fair-value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on.
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the| faif value
hierarchy as explained ahove.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are glven in the

~

Dlsc[osures for valuatlon methods, s:gnlfcant estimates and assumptlons of- FlnanC|aE instruments
(including those carried at amortised cost (note 21) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value mefsurement.
hlerarchy {note 22). _ [ L

Reven ue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future

economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for the Companys )

aotuwties as descrlbed below.

Toll revenue

~ The income from tall revenue from operations of the'facility is account-ed'on receipt basis.

3.5

: Account:ng of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

Contract revenue (construction contracts)

stage of completion of the projects at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion of
determined by the proportion that contract cost incurred for work performed up to the balanoe

bears to the estimated total contract costs. :

Contract cost includes costs that relate directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that. are
attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot be attributed to the contract activity such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and classified as other operating expenses.

Contract revenue associated with the construction of road is recognized as revenue by refere£ce to the

Others

Insurance and other ¢laims are recognized as revenue on certainty of: recelpt hasis.

“Income- on |nvestment is recognized based on the terms of the investment. Income from mutual fund-

scheme having flx_ed maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investments. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount

' outstandmg and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost interest

lneome is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

The Company has Toll Road Concession rights where it Designs, Builds, Finances, Opgrates and
Transfers (DBFOT). infrastructure used to provide public. service for a specified period of time. These

arrangements-may include: Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement forits

entire useful life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset

mode! is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a:license) to charge users of| the public
service. The financial asset modet is used when the Company has an unconditional contracttal right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are’ combined
to account separately for each component. If the Company performs more than one service (i.e.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,

consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair . values of the services

dehvered when the’amounts are separately identifiable:

project is -
heet date
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Intangible assets model
Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as infangible assets

where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are ¢ompleted. L
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is obligated to pay the amount of .=/ "/
premium fo National Highways Authority of India (NHAI. This prémium obligation has. been treated as -
Intangible asset given it is paid towards getting the right to earn revenue by constructmg and operating the

roads during the concession period. .

Hence, the total premium payable to the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agreement is also
recognized as an ‘Intangible Assets’ and the corresponding obligation for committed premium is
recognized as premium obligation.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred o acquire asset, whlch is
the fair vaiue of conS|derat|on received or receivable for the constructlon serwces dellvered '

Amortrzatlon of concession mtanglble assets
The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll |
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected o !
total toli revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; ‘Amortization is revisedin case of o
‘any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer note 23 for desciiption and

“significant terms of the coneession agreements.

Financial assets model '

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from. the grantor. in. remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession . -
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment

of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from -
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract

anancral Assets resultmg from appllcatron of Appendix A and Appendrx B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
Balance Sheet under the heading “Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor s
recognizeéd under'the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized .under the|Intangible
asset model.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is' derecognized on dlsposal or when no fntu_re: o i
economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights fo the
financial asset expire.

Maintenance obligations «

Contractual obligations fe maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and major
repairs -and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure asset ‘in operational
" condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best 'estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which next resurfacing would
be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its present value at a pre-tax

rate that reflects current market assessments: of the ttme value of money and the rtsks specrflc to the
liability. :

3.6 Taxes
Current income tax

-Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected te be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates. and

"generates taxable income. Currént income tax relating to items:recognized outside the Statemeft of Profit o
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive|income or i
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other i
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and ____
establishes provisions where appropriate.

—_
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences betwe;n the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax Iiabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

- Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against whsch the deductible temporary dlfferences and the carry forward of unused tax

- losses can be utilized.

3.7

" The carrying amount'of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred

" tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
_recognized-to the ‘extent that it has become probable that future taxable prot“ts will allow the deferred tax .
asset to be recovered. -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year

when the asset is realized .or the liability is settied, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been'

enacted or substantively enaoted at the reporting date

Deferrad tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity}). Deferred tax items

are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehenswe income) or directly

in eqwty

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Ilab:lltaes are offset if a Iegally enforc;eable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable) entity and
the same taxation authorlty

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as

part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur;
Borrowing costs, consist of interest and other costs that-an entity. incurs in connection with the borrowing of -

* funds. Borrowmg gost alse includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

3.8

3.9

horrowing costs.
Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term.,

Premium Deferment
Premium Deferral (i.e. premtum payable less paid after adjustmg premlum deferment) is aggregated under

premium deferred obligation in the balance sheet. The interest payable on the above is aggregated under
deferred premium obllgatton Interest on premium deferral is charged to the Statement of Pref tand-Loss.

3 10 Contingent I|abrllt|es

A contingent fiability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will bei confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be récognised because it cannct be measured reliably. The contingent

' -liability is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial

Statements.
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3.1 'Impairment of non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the

lowest levels for which there-are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the gagh s

inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
impairment. are reviewed for possible’ reversal of the impairment at the end of each |reporting . pericd.

3.12Provisions

Provisicns are recogmzed when the Company has a present obllgat[on (legal or constructlve) as|a result of
a past event, it is probable that an ouitflow of resources embaodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision fo be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relatlng toa prowsnon is:
presented in the Statement of Profit anid Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when ‘appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When-discounting is used the increase in
the pm\nsmn due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost, .

3.13 Employee henefits

(:) Short term obllgatlons
Llabllltles for wages and salarles including non- monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly '
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related| service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled The liabilities are presented as current -
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Leave obligations -

The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to its employees.

Privilege and sick ieave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into laccount
the esfimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is pravided for based on the basic salary of the employee
“and for the portion that is expected fo be availed, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The [liability for earned leave is also classified ‘as. current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during.the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current arid non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

 {iii) Post - employment obligations

The C'Eompany ob.erate_s various post-employment schemes, Encluding
{a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b} defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The fiability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit cbligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by mdependent agtuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined beneflt obligetionis determined by dlscodnting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the repoerting period on government bonds
that have terms apprommatmg to the terms of the related obllgatlon

" The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.
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. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in. which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
_balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognlzed |mmedlately in profit or loss as past service cost.

: Defmed Contrlbutron plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations, The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash’ and cash equwalents in the ‘balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and ishort-term . -

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits; as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

3 15 Derivatives

Derivatlves are |n|t|ally recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and- arel

subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reportlng period.

'3.16 Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operatmg cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are prgsented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

3.17 Financial mstruments h

A financial instrument is any contract that gives risefo a financial asset of one entity and a flnanual llablllty

or equity instrument of ancther entity.
Financial assets
-Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recoghised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair

- value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to the acquisition of -

the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
-established by regulatlon or convention in the market place.(regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories
» at amortised cost
% at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- = - at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH
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Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting Tontractual
cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are soiely payments of
-principal and lnterest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. .

This category is thé most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under fi nancial
assels (except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with ﬁxed or determinable payments that
are not quoted inan actrve market. :

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amertised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally apphes to loans and other - :

" recgivables,
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income -

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocablel

N

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the

instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehenswe Income. There is np recycling
of the. amounts from Other Comprehenswe Income (OCI) to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on salé -

of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss. within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Proﬂt and Loss. - :

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's simitar financial
assets} is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

_ The rights to recefve cash flows from the asset have expired, or:

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
_to pay the received cash flows in full ‘without material delay to' a third party under a 'pags-through'

arrangement; ‘and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewdrds of the
-asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor-retained- -substantially-all-the-risks-and-rewards of-the-

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entdred into a
pass-through arrangement; it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and fewards of

ownershlp When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the |
asset, nortransferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the: *

extent of the Company's continuing involvernent. In that case, the Company also recognizes an essocuated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are' measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obllgatlons that the Company has retained.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses ona forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVYOCI, The impairment methodology apphed depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109 $ expected credlt loss mpdel;
= - - Loans receivables measured at amortlsed cost

. Retentions receivable; grant receivable from NHAI

» Loans given to employees -

The impairment me_thod_ology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally short

term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

' expected credlt Iosses

Loans given to employees For Ioans given to employees outstandlng as on the reportrng dates the "has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every loan
_ ‘or receivable would result in-undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
. determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no lpan loss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit toss'('ECL') impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the pericd is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under

.. the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial |nstrum_ents-is::' e
" described below: B

Financial assets’ measured’ as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables| - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Unfil the asset meets write-off -cfiteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. :

Financial Liabilities
~ Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classfed at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair va[ue through Statement
of Prot" t and.Loss, Ioans and “borrowings, trade payables or other payables :

' All financial liabilities are recogmzed m|t|ally at fair value.

The Companys financial habmhes include trade and other payables, loans and borrowangs including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classiﬂcétion, as described below:

- Loans and borrowings
“This is the category most relevant to the Company, After initial recognition, interest-bearing lloans and
hotrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, thel Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the Ilablllttes are derecognized as well as through the fransaction cost amortization process : -

Retentlon money payable

This is the category most relevant to the: Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, théy are measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Inabltmes are derecognized as weli as
through the EIR amortlzatlon process.
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Notes to Financial Statements -

3.18

3.19

" Thé Company makés estimates and assumptions concerning the futrrre. The resulting éccbunting estmates

-~ concession arrangements. The Company has-entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per which

De-recognifipn :

A financial liability is derecognized whén the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
medification is freated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheef if
“there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognizéd amounts and there is an intention to
. settle on a:net basis, to realize the assets and settlethe llablhties smu]taneously Co

Derivative financial mstruments
N\

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

. The Company ‘uses derivative financiat instruments —principal only swaps to hedge its foreign currency- 3

risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a

. derivative contract is entered info and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried . -

as financiaf assets when the fair value Is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negafive.

Any gains or Iosses ansmg from changes in the fair value of derlvat:ves are taken directly to Statement of '

Frofit and Loss.
Segment infqrmafioh

The Compan’y is engaged in “Road Infrastructure Project” which in the context of ind AS 108 “Operating
Segment” is considered as the only segment, The Company’s activities are restrlcted within India and
hence, no separate geographlcal segment drsclosure is considered necessary

Critic_:al'accounting estimates and judéement’s

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of fufure events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causmg a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are disclosed
below,

(i) Applicability - of service concession arrangement accounting to toli roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company hae determined that Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service concession arrangements' is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service

the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis the toll
roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorltles of India (NHAI).

Accordingly the’ Company has récognized the intangible assets recognized as pe'r the accourting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

{ii) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax-losses to the extent there:

_ are sufficient faxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the-unused;
tax losses can be utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the Gompany. .

to satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future taxablej

profrts and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in reiatron to tax losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements -

(iii)Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected total
toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of any
material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits.

(iv}) Impairment of concession intangible assets

, The Company tests infangible assets and cash generating units have suffered any. impairment,
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note’ 3.11. The recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit has been determined based on the greater of value-in-use and fair value fess costs to sell
_calcwlations. These. calculations require the use of assumptions regarding traffic flows, discount rates
growth rates and other factors affecting operating activities of the cash generatlng units.

(v) Fair valuation of derivatives and other financial mstruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is deterrmined using valuation
technigues. The Company uses its judgments to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that
are mamly based on market condltaons exlstmg at each balance sheet date. '

(vi) Provision for resurfacing obligation (major matntenance expendlture)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation; as per the gongession N
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Staterments at the present value of the expected future payments. The calculations

- to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of expenditure occurring
on the roads.

. The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determmed thrcugh ]
- . reference to the nature of provision and risk associated W|th the expendlture .
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Notes to Financial Statements

860442 | «

Note 4 - Intangible assets ‘ : X Mill ths :
Particulars Toll Collection rights
Net carrying amount as at April 01,201-5 8,358;13

.[Year ended March 2016 =
Opening gross carrying amount 8,604.42
Additions -
Disposals

IClosing gross carrying amount
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment

|Opening accumulated Afnortisation and impairment - 248.29
Amortisation charge for the year 154.05
Disposals L
Closing acc.u‘mulated Amortisation and impairment
Net carrying amount 8,204.08 |
Period ended March 2017
Opening gross carrying amount 8,604.42
Additions -

_IDisposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 8,604.42 |. '

|Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Openlng accumulated Ameortisation and :mpalrment 400.34
Amortisation charge for the year 162.87
Disposals -
Closing accumullated Amortisation and impairment 56-3'20 -
Ne{ darrying_amount 8,041.22
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SU Toll Road Private Limited

. Notes to Financial Statements .

__.Cash balance not available for use: :
..-The company is required to maintain restrlcted cash which can only be used as a reserve for ser\ncmg the debt under financing arrangements These
restricted cash balances have not been included in the year end cash balances for the purposes of preparation of Cash Flow Statement.

Cash held on restricted fixed deposits
Fixed Deposits

Note § (¢} - Other financial assets - current

Grant receivable from NHAI -~~~ : N

", Security deposits- . ; -.

Interest accrued on fixed depﬂsﬂs
Others _
Claim receivable from NHAI

' Note 5 (ci) Movement on Gfant r'ec'eivab!e' from NHAI

As at beginning of the year

Accrued Interest

: Repayment of Grant

Grant accounted for during the year
As at end of the year

Non - Current

Current

Note 5 (d) - Other financial assets - Non - current

‘Grant receivable from NHAI T e

Note 6 - Other non:current assets
Gratuity Advance

' Note 7 - Other Current assets

Advance to vendors
Advance to employees

Prepaid Expenses. :

Duties and-taxes receivable

T Millions
Particulars _ Asat . Asat . Asat
) March 31, 2017 - March 31, 2018 April 1, 2015
Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current ’
Note 5 {a) - Cash'and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents .

. Balances with banks . _ ) )
= in current accounts 61.71 40.98 55,22
Cash on hand 2.35 3.08 3.02

54.06 44.06 58.24
Note 5 {b) - Other bank balances _
Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than 442.49 248.42 95.08
twelve months :
442.49 248.42 95.03

442,49 248.42 95.08
34249 24842 ~95.08
92.81 130.61 | 144.43
.0.12 gz 042
2.03 128 1.53
064 29.34 30.46
14.23 Lo -
109.83 161.35 176.22
323.39 608.03 944.99
28.81 72.96 113.04
-269.39 35780 44700 ¢
62.81 353.39 " 608.03
. 192,78 463.60
92.81 130,61 144,43
- 19478 46380
- 193.78 T463.60
0.37 0.77 0.87
0.37 0.77 0.87
141,21 189.81 96.37
0.18 . 040
1.93 0.26 - 1.89.
0.68 - 32.10
190.07 130.76

144.00

i
i
|
i
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Particulars

Note 8 - Share Capital and Other equity

MNote 8a - Authorised Share Capital

At the beginning of the year

'Add : Increase during the year

At the end of the year

Note 8b - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity
share capital - : ’

At the beginning of the year

Add : Increase during the year

At the end of the year

" Note 8c - Terms and rights aftached to equity shares

. Thé Company. has only gne class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs.10/-. .

Note 8d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares .
_ Nos of Shares at the baginr\ing of the year
Add : Nos of Shs_ufes issued during the year

Nas of Shares &t the end of the year

Note 8e - Shares held by the Sponsor
Company or their subsidiaries/associafes

Refiance Infrastructure Limited
(Immediate and Ultimate Holding Company)

Note Bf - Details of Sharehclders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Reliance Infrastructure Limited
Nos of Shares - o
% of holding :

Space Trade Enterprises Private Limited
Nos of Shares
% of halding

“ Frusteé ; Space Trade Enterpiises Privaté Limited( Trust: Refiance Toll Road Trust)

--Nos of Shares
% of holding

Spice Commerce and Trade Private Limited
Nos of Shares . e
% of helding

Skyline Global Trade Private Limited

Nos of Shares

% of holding

‘The Sponsar has pledged 145,45,685 Equity Shases for availing various term loans.

Particulars

Note 9a - Corporate Guarantee (innature of equity)
At the beginning of the year

Increase / (decrease) during the year

At the end of the year

Nos of
Shares

2,30,00,000

. of T10 each

1,84,12,260
of €10 each

% Millions

As at

March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
April 1, 2015

230.00 230.00 230,00
230,00 530,00 ~530.00
184,12 184.12 - 184.12
. - .
184,12 843 184712
1,84,12,260 1,84,12,260 1,84,12,260
1.64.12.260 1.84,12,260 1.8412.260
1,84:12,260 90,22.007 " 60,22,007
1,84,12,260 90,22,007 §0,22,007
100% 49% 49%
. 30.06,722 30,06,722
16% T 1a%
- 368,245 3,68,245
29 2%
- 30,08,553 30,08.563
6% 16%
. 30,08,722 30,06,722
16% 18%
% Millions
As at As at As at

* March 31, 2016

April 1, 2016

March 31, 2017

6.60

6.60

6.60

6.60
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Nature and purpose of Debenture Redemption Reserve

As per the Companles {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended) company is reqtnred to create deben

out of profits equal to 25% of the amount of debentures issued. Accordingly the SPV has appropriated (25%) of the dg

would be utilised for redemption of debentures during its maturlty

Notes to Financial Statements . ¥ Milfions
i lars " As at . . Asat As at _
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Note 9b - Retained Earnings
At the beginning of the year (165.24) 191.18
Net Profit for the Period {329.42) (338.87)
. ltems of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in Tetained earnings -
"< Remeasuremens of post-employements {0.49) {0.03)
“obligations (net of tax)
Debenture Redemption Reserve’ {14.84) (17.52) o
At the end of the year . (500.99) (165.24) . 191,18
Note 9c - Securities Premium Account
At the beglnnlng of the year : oo ) 1‘,938.68 - 1,938.68:
Premlum on shares issued dunng the year - -
At the end of the year 1,838.68 1,838.68 1,638.68
Nature and purpose of securities premlum
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the act.
.Note 9d - Debenture Redemption Reserve
At the beginning of the year 32.66 15.14
Reserve created during the year 18.08 19.16
Reserve utitised during the year (3.24) (1.64)
At the end of the year 47.50 32.66 i5.14

ture redemiption reserve -

zbentures issued which
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% Millions
barticiia PR : — .. TAs at . ~As at T Asat .
articuiars March 31, 2017 March 34, 2016 Aprif1,-2015 . ‘
Note 10 {a) - Borrowings - Non current !
Secured |
i Debentures K . . o . _ '
10.75% Non Convertible Debentures ' 785.79 7686.52 793,05
Term loans
From banks
Rupee term loan . 4,626.35 4,629.62 . . 3,179.37
' F'rénifﬁﬁa"ncial insii'{utions i ' ) ' R o
Rupee term loan 1,096.04 1,094.27 . 2,579.72
Total . : 6,508.19 ' 651042 . %,552.15

1) Debenture, Rupee Terrh Loa}r from Banks & Financial Institutions :

The Borrowmgs are secured by the way of terms stafed in Common Loan Agreement entered between company angd Consomum of lenders wh|ch are as
undar:-

(i) a first ranking pari passu mortgage/charge over all the Borrower's immoveable and movable properties, both present and future, except the Project
Assets. ; |

(ina f‘rst ranking pari passu charge on all the Borrawer's bank accoynts including, but not limited to the Escrow Account/ its Sub-ficcounts whare aII
revenues, Disbursements, receivables shall be deposited and in ali funds from time to time deposned therein and in all authorised Invesimenis or other : i
securities representing ali amounts credited to the Escrow Account.

{iii) a first ranking pari passu charge on all movable fangible and intangible assets of the Borrower (other than those specified in faragraphs (i) above and

| {iv} below) including but not limited to its goodwill, undertaking and uncalled capital, both present and future, except the Project Assets.;
C {iv) afirst ranklng pari passu charge over / assignment of the right, t|tle interests benefits, claims and demands of the Borrower in, to and under any letier of

credit, guarantees including contracter guarantees and liquidated damages and performance bond provided by any party 1o the Project Documents.

(v) Repayment Terms :-The repayment of loan and Nen-convertible Debentures has started from FY 2014-15 in 45 quarterly mstallments and W|1I be paid tilt
_ FY 2028, The interest will be paid monthiy as per the applicable Interest rates.
- {vi} The applicable-interest rate for Rupee term Loan varies from 11.45 % to £2.50% .

The coupon rate is fixed at 10.75% per annum payable monthly for the entire tenure.

Note 11 - Trade Payables

“Trads Payables : ' ' 39.70 39.05 . 25.03
39.70 39.05 25.03

{a} Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Mediurm Enterprise Development Act, 2008" is based on the information avaitable

with the Company regardmg the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as perthe intimation: received from them on requesfs made hy the. -
’ 'company There are no overdue prmclpal amounts/interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balande Sheet datg. There are no IS

delays in payment made to such suppliers. during the year or for any sarlier years and accerdingly there is no Interest paid or outs andmg interest in this

regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from gravious years. ™ .
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T Millions
Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1,:2015
Note 12 {a} - Other financial liabilities - current : RN i R )
Current Maturities of long term debt 6,08 48.40 51.20
Security Deposits 0.52 0.52 0.52
Othier payable 15.93 1.98 0.03
Retenticrs money payable 12.06 - -
Total 34.56 50.90 51.74
Note 12 (b) - Other financial lfabilities - Non - current
Non - Current .
Reten!lon money payable N - 8.78 75,04
Total - 8.78 0 5.04
Note 13 (a) - Provisions - Current
Current
Provigion for employee benefits
- Gratuity - - -
- Leave encashment 0.07 0.04 0.03
Others
- Resurfacing expenses 891,24 - -
- 891.32 0.04 0.03
Note 13 (b) - Provisions - Non - Current
Provision for amployee benefils
- Gratuity . - -
- Leave encashment 1.96 1.08 0.78
Others
- Resurfacing expenses - 756.69 472.39
1.96 757.97 47317
Movement in provision during the f“nanc:al vear is set out as below:
Resurfacing provisions "
At the beginning of the year 756.69 472.39 240.33
Charged / {credited) to profit ar loss
addifional Provision recognised 96,60 227.61 203.23
unused amount reversed - - .
‘unwinding of discount - 37.95 56.69 28.84
Amount utilised during the year - - -
Al the‘end of the year 891.24 756.69 i 47238

: 'Resurfacing provisions ~significant éstimates

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAI, the company is obligated to carry out resurfacing of the roads under concession. The company

estlmates the likely provision reqmred towards resurfacing and accrues the costs on a straight fine basis over the penod at the end of the which resurfacing

would be requwed in the' Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 37" Provisions, Contmgent Liabilities and Contmgent Assets'.

Note 14 - Other current lizbilities

Advances from Customers
Buties and taxes payable

B 27.81 27.51
3.59 7.63 7.52
3.59 35.14

35.02
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% Millions

Particulars

Year ended

-March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

“"Note 15 - Revenue

Operating income ‘

- Income from toll collections
Compensation towards Toll Suspension
Other Operating income

‘Note 16 - Other income

Dividend income on current investment:

Interest income o

- On financial assets carried at amortised cost -
- On fixed deposits

- Others

Insurance claim received

Note 1'( - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

- Site and other direct expenses

Note 18 - Emp[oyee_be.nefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident funds and other funds
Gratuity

Leave encashment

- Staff welfare expenses - -

Note 19 - Firiance Costs

Interest on loan
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Note 20 - Other expenses

Rates & taxes
Insurance
Legal and Professional Charges
Expenditure toward Corporate Social responsibility
Auditors Remuneration
~ Travelling and Conveyance
Other miscellaneous expenses

826.91

824.65

57.93 -
1.73 1.24
886.57 825.90
1.63 5.03
-t 38.81 '72.96
23.63 8.90
0.09 0.29
0.50 s
64.65 8719 .
4477 . 54.51
200.72 . 300.81
8.81 11.60
0.50 0.42
15.87 - 1719
1270.67 38453
8.89 6.67
0.66 0.45
0.09 . 0.05
1.24 032 -
0.12° 0,36
11.00 7.85
743.29 761.75
37.95 56.69
3.59 8.71
784 83 827.15
0.40 0.13
4,98 6.27
12.87 12.30
0.02 -
0.68 0.48
0.53 0.85 -
8.83 12.96
28.31

a0,
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Note 21 - Fair value measurements
Financial Instruments by category

Total financial labilities

Signficance of financial instruments T Millions
N : As at " As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 °
_Financial assets '
At amortised Cost ‘ .

- Grant receivable from NHAI 92.81 323.39 608.03 -
Security Deposits 0.12 012 0.12
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2.03 1.28 1.22
Insurance Claim receivabies 0.64 29.34 30.48
Cash and Cash equivalent 64.068 .44.06 - 158.24.

B .Otherfba_n:k'balahces T 442 .49 248.42 - 95.08
Claim receivable from NHAI 14.23 - -
Total financial assets 616.39 646.61 793.14

' . 616,39 646.61 793.14
Finangial liabilities . i

At amortised Cost ‘

Fioating Rate Borrowings 5,728.44 5,772.29 5,810.29
Debentures 785.79 786.52 793.05
Trade Payables 3970 39.05 . 25.03

. ‘Retention money payable 12.06 878 5.04
Security Deposits 0.52 0.52 0.52
Employee Benefits Payable 15.93 1.98 - 0.03
'5582.45 6609.15 6633.97
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.Note 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

(a) Fair value hierarchy - Recurring fair value measurements ¥ Millions
Particulars As at _ As at ..o Asat
: e March 31, 2017 ) “March 31,:2016 © Aprild, 20187

Financial assets

" At Fair value through profit & loss
Level1 ) i . s
Mutual fund Investments D - _ R - : g -

Derivatives not designated as hedges

Level 2
Principal swap ‘ - o =
Total financial assets ' i - = ~

Financiat liabilities

Derivatives not demgnated as hedges
Level 2 : _ T
Principal swap ) - ) : Sl i -
Total financial liabilities : ' - s - -

(b} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for
which fair values are disclosed

Financial assets

Level 3 . 7 : . -
Grant receivable from NHAI o 9281 .. 323.39 - 608.03 .
Total financial assets - _ 92.81 ' 323.39 - 608.03

Financial liabilities

Level 3 :
Floating Rate Borrowings 5,728.14 5,772.29 581028
.Debentures _ o 792.30 , 707.do 74700 |
Retention money payable 12.06 8.78 504 i

Tota! financial liabilities 6532.50 6488.07 65662.33

Recognised fair value measurements ; o :
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quofed prices. Th|s includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The

-mutual funds are valued using the closmg NAV.

L.evel 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data-and rely as liitle as possible on entity-specific estnmates If all 5|gmf|cant
©inputs required to fair value an instrument are- observable, the instrument is included in level 2. - : :

Level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is |ncluded in level 3. This is the case for
borrowmgs debentures Retention money payable and hedging derivative included in'level 3

Valuation techmque used to determine fair valte
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for simitar instruments
- « the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determmed using forward exchange rates at th baiance sheet date
. the fair value of the remaining fi fnancnal instrurments is determmed us:ng discounted cash flow analysis. - : g o
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(c) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

- ¥ Millions

As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Financial assets

Carrying value of flnancral assets at amortised cost

Grant receivable from NHAI 92.81 323.-3 3 - 608.03
Total Financial assets at amortised cost 92.81 323.3% 608.03
Fair value of financial assets carried at ambrtised cost

Grant receivable from NHAI
Total Fair v'alue of financial assets at amortised cost - - -

'Fmanclal habthtles

Carrylng value of financial Irabllltles at amortlsed cost S

Floating rate borrowigns 5,728.44 5,772.29 5,810.28

‘Debentures : 785.79 786.52 © 79305

Retention money 12.06 8.78 5.04

6,526.30 6,567.60 6,608.39

Fair value of finaneial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Floating rate borrow:gns 5,728,14 5,771.89 5.809.89_

. 'Debentures . : 792.30 2 707.00 . 747.00"

Retention money 12.08 8.78 5.04

' 6,532.50 6,487.67 . 6,561.93

The carrying value amounts of fnxed deposits, inferest accrued on depoists, retention money recelvable insurance clain recewable cash and

- cash equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits payable and creditors for capital expenditure app
due to their short term nature, '

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

roximate their fair value
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Statements

Note 23- Concession arrangements - Main features

¢ MHllions

Name of entity

Description of the
arrangement

Significant terms of the arrangement

Gross book value

Intangible Assets

Net book value

Financial Asset -

SU Toll Road
Private Limited

Financing, design, building and
operation of 136 kilometre long

\
Pericd of concessich: 2008 - 2033
Remuneration : Toll

six lane toll road between Salem|investment grant from concession grantor ;

and Ulunderput on National
Highway 68 -

Yes

pericd : Yes
Investment and renewal cbligations : Nil
Re-pricing dates : Yearly

is determined : inflation
Premium payable to grantor : Nil

Infrastructure return-at the end of concessicn

Basis upon which re-pricing ¢t re-negotiation

March 31, 2017
8,604.42

March 31, 2016
8,604.42

April 01, 2015
) 8,604.42

March 31,/2017
8,041.22

March 31, 2016
8,204.08

April 01, 2015

8,358.13 |

‘March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017
§2.81

323,39

April 01, 2018
608.03
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SU Toll Road Private Limited:
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 24 — Financial tisk management

The company activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is

Risk

Credit risk .
Market risk — foreign exchange
" Market risk — interest rate

Liquidity risk

Exposure arising
from

Cash and cash
equivalents, trade
receivables, financial
assets measured at
amortised cost.

Recognized financial

assets and liabilities
not denominated in
Indian rupee (INR)
Long-term borrowings
atvariable

Rates
Borrowings and other
Ilablhtles

-ratings

Measurement

Aging analysis Credit‘

Cash flow forecasting
Sensitivity analysis -

Sensitivity analysis

‘Rolling cash flow
forecasts |

Management

Diversification of bank |

* deposits; credit limits

and letters of credit

Actively Managed
Actively Managed

Availability of
committed credit lines
and borrowing
facilities

The company’s risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team (group treasury) yinder policies approved by

board of directors. The Management of the company provides written principles for overali risk management, as wel

as policies coverlng

specrflc areas, such as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative finanicial instrument, and

investments of excess liquidity.

Commodrty risk:

The company reqmres for implementation (construction, operatlon and malntenance) of the projects such as cement

bitumen, steel and other

construction materials. For which, the company entered inte fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and O&M Contractor 50 as to manage

our exposure to pnce increases in raw materials. Hence the sensitivity analysis is not required.

Market risk — mterest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate Fluctuations carry.a risk on flnanciais the
“company earn tollincome which is Imked to WPI thus providing a- natural hedge to the lnterest rate risk.

: a) Interest rate risk exposure ¥ Millions
Particulars As at As at ~ Asat
: March 31, 2017 - March 31, 2018 . April1, 2015 .
Variable Rate Borrowings 5,728.44 - -
Fixed Rate Borrowings 785.79 6,558.80 . 6,603.35
Total 6.514.24 6,558.82 6,603.35
- b) Sensitivity analysis
Profit or' loss is se_nsitive to higher/lower interest income from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
-ll t Co f'tli ft t As at As at As at _
mpact on profitiloss aiter tax March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

: Interest rates (increase) by 1 basis pointé
- Interest rates decrease by 1 basis points

- 45.25

45.25
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SU Tolt Road Private Limited
Notes to Finantial Statemenits

Liquidity risk _ . ¥ Millions

The table below analyses the company's non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Derivative financial liabilities are
included in the analysis iIf their contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts

- disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. :
H . - | .: B

As at March 31, 2017 Lessthan3 Between 3 Between 1 Betweeni 2 Over5years  Total
months months and1 vyearand2 vyearsand5 :
. : year years years
Non-derivatives L
Borrowings . 1.61 4.54 30.25 393.22 6,117.24 6,646.76
Trade and other payables 9.83 29.78 ' 38.70
- Other financial liabilities o - 31.20 - - - 31.20
. Total non-derivatives. - 11.44 65.52 30.25 393.22 6,117.24 . B6617.66 !
As at March 31, 2016 Lessthan3 Between 3 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5 years - Total
: - - mionths ~ months and1 yearand2 yearsand5 T
‘ year years years
Non-derivatives : : o ‘ .
Borrowings 12.10 36.30 6.06 108.89 6,431.82 6,595.16
Trade and other payables 9.76 29.29 - - - 39.05
Other financial liabilities - 2.50 11.47 - - 13.97
Total non-derivatives o ' 21.86 68.09 17.52 108.89 6,431.82 - 6,648.18.
: ; :
As at April 1, 2015 ] Less than 3. Between 3 Between 1 Between 2 ° Over 5years - Total
months  months and1 yearand2 yearsand$ ‘
year years years
Non-derivatives ' ' ‘
Borrowings 12.10 . 36.30 4840 66.55 6,480.21 8,6843.55
Trade and other payables . 6.26 18.77 - - - 25.03

Other financial liabilities 0.55 - 0.55

Total non-derivatives . ‘ R 18.36 55.62 . 48.40 66.55 6,480.-21 . B5,669.13
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SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 25 - Capital risk management

R

The company objectives when managing capital are to

. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns:

benefits for other stakeholders, and _
. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

" For the burpoee of the 'compeny capital management, capital includes issued equity-capital, share premium, sub-debts-and all Othér-:

for shareholders and

equity reserves atiributable to the equity holders of the parent. The pnmary Db]eCtIVB of the company capital management is to

maXImsze the shareholder value,

The company manages its capltal structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in ecdnomic conditions and the ‘reqUirements of -

the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital'structure, the company mey adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,

retumn capital to shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinate debt. The company monitors capital using a gea
_ de_bt divideq by total capital plus net debt. The company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The company in

interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company capital management, amongst other thin.gs., aims to
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borroWings that define capital structl.'rr:e r'equireme

made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31,
_Consistent with ot'hers inthe industry,'the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
| Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by -
Total 'equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

ring ratio, which is net

ehsufe ‘that it meets

20186.

The company strategy is to maintain a debt to equity ratio within 3.87 to 2.80, The gearing ratios at March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 &

ludes within net debt, -

nts. No changes were

March 31, 2015 were as follows:
T Millions
Particulars -As at : _As at - Asat
artieurars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Netdebt(a) 6,450.18 6,514.76 # ©6,545.11
Equity (b} ~ . 1,666.91 1,006.82 # 233572, ..
Net debt to equity ratio (a} / {b) 3.87. 326 # 2.80
Particulars - As at As at ‘ As at .
 Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Net debt (a) 6,450.18 6.514.76 6,545.11
Equity (b) 1,666.91 1,996.82 233572
Nebt debt plus Equity (c = a+b) 8,117.09 -8,511.58 8,880.82
Gearing ratio (a) / c - 079 i 0.77 (_).7‘4
Note 26 - Contingent liabilities
¥ Millions
As at

Particulars March 31, 2017. -

Differences in balances as per bank loan confirmations and
books of accounts mainly on account of interest rate

resetfing are under reconciliation ‘with the bankers. The 5.48
company expect to settle these soon and do not anticipate

any further liability on account of interest.
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35U Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Condensed Financial Statéements

‘Note 27 -Related Party Schedule

As per accounting standard Ind AS 23 as prescrlbed under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 the related parties and
transactions are disclosed below : : :

(i) Sponsor Company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

\

(if) Key Management Personnel

Mr. Kaushik Pal - Director (w.e.f. October 1, 2015)
"+ M, Madan Biyani - Director (w.e.f. March 31, 2015)

Mr. Sudhir Hoshing- Director (till February 28, 2015)
Mr. Amitabh Jha - Director (w.e.f. August 20, 2015)
Mr. Prakash Khedekar - Company secretary (w.e.f. February 7, 2017}
Ms. Zarana Patel - Chief Financial Officer (w.e f. February 7, 2017}
Mr. Kumar Kundan -Manager (w.e.f. February 7,2017)

{iii) Person havmg singificant |nfluence on the Sponsor Company
Shri Anil .D. Ambanl

“Detalls of trédnsactions and closing balarice . N ' ' ‘ - s ' ¥ Millions

Particulars : March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 | . April 01, 2015

Transactions during the yeér :

Toll operation and maintainence expenses (including project
execution support services)
Reliance Infrastructure Itd ’ . 12.51 13.02

: R'e_imrbursigment of expenditure paid' by - . : . : o
Reliance Infrastructure itd ' ) ' 5.79 9.93

Balances at the year end

. Other current liabilities . - : : ‘
Reliance Infrastructure Itd ’ 7.95 5.99 ) -

Equity share capital {excluding premium)
Reliance Infrastructure Itd ) 184.12 . 90.22 ’ 90.22
. Spice commerce and trade pnvate limited (SCTPL) . ) o - -~ .. . 8009 . - .. - 13009 .
Space Trade enterprises private limited (STEPL) : S o - Y 30.07 C 30.07 .
-Skyline global trade private fimited (SGTPL) - 3007 ‘ - 30.07

Trustee : Space Trade Enterprise private limited - ) . ‘ i
( Trust ; Reliance Toll Road Trust) {(RT Trust) o i - 3.68 ‘ ‘388
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Notes to Financial Statements .

Noto ‘ZB-Graluity and other post-employment benefit plans

. "a) Defined contribution plan
The following amount recognized as an expense in Staternent of profit and less on account of provident fund and other funds.

There._are no other obligations other than the c_:anlnbuhon payable ta the respective authorities. ¥:Milfions
Particulars . . Asat o As at :’-\s at
N March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Ccntr}bﬁﬁnn to provident fund and cther funds 0.20 &.17 0.13
Total ' : 0.29 ' 9.17 0.13

a) Defivod bcnef‘t ptan

The company has a defined bengfit plan (Gratuny) for its employeas. The gratuity plan is govemed by the Payment of Gratmty Act, 1972, Under the Act, employee whe has
completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit, The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary gt retirement age. Every
emplayee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed ygar of service as per the

provision of the Payment of Gratuity. Act, 1972 Wllh total ceiling on gratuity of Rs.1,000,000/-. The said graiu:ty plan is funded.

The following tables summaries the The amounts recognlsed in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defned benefit obl:gatlon over the
vear are as follows:

T

’ Particul As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

" ‘Opening definod bonefit liability / (assets) © L ' 102 S 072 0.84
Net employee benefit expanse rocogmsed in the employec cost )

. Current service cost ‘ ) . 0.15 : 0.12 0.16
Past service cost : . o - ’ . - -
Interest cost an benefit abligation ) : : ) . 0.08 : 0.06 0.07
{Galn) / losses on setilement : ’ . . - ] - .-
Net benefit expense - o . 0.23 017 0.23
Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income {QCI)

Measurement during the period due to ; .

Return on plan assets, excluding amourts included in interest expensef{income) - . T+ -

Acluarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions : : 0.13 R AV 0.06

Actuarial loss / {gain) arising on account of experience changes . o . e o e B C R

Experience (gains)losses : . : 1.04 Q12 - 7 - 0.09

Amount recognized in OCI 117 (._13' - 0.03

Benefit Paid ' - 0.42 o - 0.33

Clesing net defined benefit liability / (asset) _\ ’ 1.99 1.02 072

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 20156

Opening fair valiie of plan 'aﬁ's;s'ets v : ‘ _ o a7 o 158

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employoe cost

Interest cast.on benefil obligation . . 014 _ 0.12 0.12

(Gain) / losses on setflement” . - . - -

Net benefit expense B ' ) 014 - 0.12 0.12

Armount recorded in Other Gomprehensive Income {(OC]]

Measurement during the period due fo ;

Retum on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expensef{inceme) 0.01 0.00 - 0.01

Actuarial foss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions - - -

Acluanial foss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes - - -

Experience (gains)/losses . _ X - - ) L.
.- Agset ceiling nol recognised as an asset. . - - . . - - : 042 L S Q08 - e 027

-+ Amount recognized in OCI ) ’ 043 09 - T D28

Emgloyer contributicns/premiums paid ) 042 . - 033

Benefits Paid : . - 0.42 - - 0.00

Closing fair value of plan assets B ) 2.36 1.79 1.58
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SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

The net liability disclosed abave relates 1o funded plan is as follows:

X Millions
i As at As at Asaft .
lars .. hsd s :
Pasticu March 21, 2017 farch 31, 2015 April 1, 2016
!
Present value of funded obligations 1.99 1.02 0.?2
Fair vakie of plan assets 2.38 1.79 1.68
) Amount not recognised as an asset (asset ceiling) - - =
0.37 Q.77 0.87
Not liability is bifurcated as follows :
Current - - B
Non-current 0.37 0.77 0.87
Total 0.37 0.77 0.87
il As at . As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2015 April 1, 2015
Discount rate 7.05% " 7.50% 7.85%
Expecied rate of return on plan assets (p.a.). - : :
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 7.50% 7.60% 7.50%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality pre-retirement Mortality Morgality Mortality
(2006-08) (2008-08) (2006-08}
A quantitative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
As at As at -~ As at

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

“April 1, 2015

Assumptions -Oiscount rafe

50 bp

closing value of asset ceiling

Sensitivity Level 50 bp, 56 bp.
Impact on defined benefit ohligation -in % ingrease -4.32% ~4.35% . -4.43%
Impact on defined bénefit obkgation -in % decrease 4.58% T 4.62% " 4.69%
Assumptions -Future salary increases : ’
Sensitivity Level 50 bp 50 bp 50 bp
Impact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase 4.54% 4.61% 4.68%
impact on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease -4.32% -4.38% -4,46%
“The table below shows the expécted ¢ash flow prafile of the bensfits to be paid to the current rnernbershlp of the plan based on’ past service of the
employees as at the valuation date;
Particut As at As at . Asat
rarculars Marchi 31, 2017 March 31, 2015 April 1, 2015
‘Within the next 12 months {next annual repnrimg period) 0.06 0.03 0.03
Betwaen 2 and 5 years 0.28 016 0.1
Between 6 and @ years 212 0.24 0.16
For and Beyond 10 years 1.55 1.83 1.28
Total expected payments 4.01 2.26 1.58
. The average duration of the defiried banafit-plan-Shligation 3t the &nd of the raporing périod” 8.90 years 895 yeurs: CUgAt years
Plan Assets Composition
Parti : ”Aé-at As at As at
Particulars . March 21, 2017 March 31, 2016 ‘April 1, 2016
Neon Quoted R ;
Insurer Managed Funds 2.36 1.79 1.58
2.38 1.79 1.58
A reconcilialion of the asset ceiling dﬁring the inter-valuation period is given below:

.. Opening value of asset ce:lmg '0.40. 0.45 016
Add : Interest on opening balance on asset cellmg 0.03 0.03 0.01
Remeasurement due 1o ;

Changes in surplus/deficiet 0,42 .08 0.27
0.01 0.45

0.40
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 29- Events after reporting period

There are no subsequent event after the réporting year which required adjhstments to the Financial State

ments.
Note 30 - Earning per share: .
Particulars ‘ Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016,
Profit / Loss attributable to equity shareholders (Rs Millions) (A) (329.42) (338.87)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted earnings per 1,27.55,650 1,27,55,650
share (B} : : : ‘ . ‘
Earnings / (l.oss) per share (Basic and diluted) {Rupees) {A/B) (25.83){, (26.57)
{Nominal value of equity shares (Rupees) 10.00 L 1000 i
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i SU Tl Road anatc Limited
" Notes 1o Financia? Statements

Note 31 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

The Company has prepared these Financial Stalamenls which comply with tnd AS applicable for the periods ending March 31, 2017 togethar With the comparative period data as at and for the year
. anded March 31, 2016 respactively as described in the summary of signficant accounting policies. In prepanng thase financial statements, the Company has considered April 01,'2015 as the date of

transition and has adjusted tha amounts repcrled previously in the financial statements prepared in acccrdancs with the acccunhng standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard} Rules,

2008 {as amoended} and other refevant provisions of the Act {Previous GAAP or indian GAAP),

‘The adoption of Ind A8 has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 104, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.

In preparing these ind AS Financial Statemnents, the Company has availed certain exampfions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference between

the carrylng values of the assets and liabiities in the Financial Statemenis as at the transition date under Ing AS and Previsus GAAP have been recognised directly in equity (retained eamings or

another appropriate category of equity). This nots explains the adjustments made by the Company in restating its Previous GAAP Financial Statements, including |he Balarice Sheei s &t Apnl 01

2015,

A, Exemptions from retrospective application

Ind AS 104 allows first-ime adopters certain exemptions from retrespective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has elected t6 apply the following optional exempiions
from retrospecnve application of Ind AS:

Amortizatlon nflntanglble assets arlslng from service concession arrangéments .
The Company has used exemption undsr Ind AS 101 and has continue to adopt the accounting policy of Previous GAAP for amortization for intangible assets arising from sarvice concession
arranaements ralatina to concession teoll roads intanaibla assets recoonized in the Financial Statemants.

B. Exceptl from rotrospectlve application

The Compary has appl]ed the fcllowlng excepucns from full retrospective appucauan of Ind AS as mandatonly requured undsr ind AS 101:

{a) Estimates B : : : - B - . . . . ,
On assessment of lhe eshmates mada under the Previous GAAP finaricial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessny to ravise the estimates under Ind AS as 1here is rie

ohjactive ewdence that those estimates were in errar. Hnwever astimates, that ware required under Ind AS but not required under Prewous GAAP, are made by the Company for.the relavanl

reporhng dates, reflecting conditions existing as at that dale
{b) CIassif'catlon and measurement of financial assets o .
‘ ' The classification of financial assets to be rneasured at amomsed cost or t'alr value through other cemprehensive income is made an the basis of the facts and cu'cumstances that existed on the
\ : date of transition 1o Ind AS.

€. Transition to Ind AS - Recongillations
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, cash flows for the prior pericds. The following table represents the reconciliations from previous [ndian GAAP tojInd AS:

I Effect of Ind AS adoption ¢n the Balance Sheet as al March 31, 2016 and Agpril 1, 2015

II. - Effect of [nd AS adaption on the Statoment of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016
{Il. ‘Recongiifation of total equity as at March 31, 2016-and Agril 1, 2015 .

IV. Reconcifiation of total comprshensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016

V. Material adjustments to the statement of cash flows for tha year ended March 31, 2016

\. Effect of ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet . : ] . . i ¥ Millions
' As at March 31, 2016 As at Api-ii 1, 2015

Particulars (End of last period Z:Zt;r;ted under prevrous {Date of transition)
Note Indian GAAP* Ind AS Ind AS Indian GAAP* Ind AS Ind AS
: adjustments . _adjustments
ASSETS : ; Co
Non-current assets ) . L . - . ) L . - . e i IR
(2) tntangible assets : : B ) 10,631 58 (2,327.50) 8,204.08 10,718,383 {2,360,20) 8,358,13,
(i} Other Financial Assets - ] - 192.78 192.78 - 463.60 463.60.
{b} Deferred tax assots (net) {il} - 355.36 355.36 - 192.74 192.74.
{c} Other non - curront assets - . : Lo 0.77 G 0.77 087 S 0.87.-
Current assets )
{a) Financial Assets . : : : L . : : -
(i} Cash and cash equwalents : ’ : 44 06 . 44,06 58.24 - 58,24
(i} Bank balances othar than (i} above 248.42 - 248.42 95.08 - $5.08
(iii) Other financial assst {i) 3.23 158.12 161.35 4.28 171.94 176.22
(b} Current Tax Asssts (Net) 202 - . 202 2.27 - 2.27
(c} Other current assets 190.07 - 190.07 130.76 - 130.76
Total Assots . 11!020.16 {1.621.23) 9,3988.93 11,009.8. {1,531.82) 9,477.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
‘EQUITY . ’
(a) Equity share capital ’ R 184.12 - 184.12 R 184.92 . .- X 184.12
{B) Other equity : 4,127.28 (2,314.58) 1,812.70 . 4,1413.0 (1,961.42) 2,151.60
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities :
(a) Financlal Liabllities 5
(i) Borrowings . (it 6,546.76 (36.34) 6,510.42 6,592.36 (40.21) 6,552.15
(iiy Other financial liabilitiss tv) 11.47 (2.89) 278 . 778 (2.69) 5.04
{b) Provisicns {iv) 1.08 756,69 757.77 0.73 472.39 473.17
{c) Deferred tax liabilites (Nat} * i 24.32 (24.32) - .- : - -
Currant liabilities -
{a) Financial Liabilities S : R
(ii) Trade payables 39.05 - 38.05 25.03 - 25.03
(jii) Other financial fiabilities 50.90 - 50.80 51.74 - 51.74
(b} Cther current liabilities 35.14 Co- 35.14 35.02 - 36.02
(c) Provisions - . 0.04 - 0.04 0.03 - 0.03
_Total Equity and Liabilitios .. . : . 11,020.16 {1,621.23}) 9.3989__2: : 11,009.83 {1,531.92) 9,477.91

*The presentation réduirements under Previous GAAP differs from and henge the Previous GAAP informétion has been regrouped for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. The regrouped Pravious
GAAP information is derived based on the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2015 RNy,


41017944
Stamp

41017944
Stamp


SU Toll Read Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 31 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of profit and loss for the

year ended March 31, 2016

Particulars

_Revenue from operations
-Other [ncome

" Total Income

Expenses
Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses
.Employee benefits expense '
Finance costs
Amoriization expense
~Other expenses
Total expenses

“Profit / (l6s¢) before t'axf :

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax charge/(credit)

Profit/(L.oss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

{i} ltems that will not be reclassified

to profitorloss .
Remeasurements of net defined
benefit plans : Gains / (Loss)

. (i) Income tax relating to items that will not
" be reclassified to profit or loss

; Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year

_ Total Comprehensive Income /(Loss) for the year

Note
(i)
(i)

()

Cwy

(M

(i)

CL R

Z Millions

For the year eﬁnded March 31, 2016

(Latest period prese

ted under previous GAAP)

- ind AS
. Ind AS
Indian GAAP adiistments n
1,183.50 (357.60) - 82590 |
14.23 - 7296 . 8119
1,197.72 (284.64) 913.09
143,14 241.39 | 384.53
7.89 (0:04) 7.85
766.50 60.56 82745
200.52 (46.48) 154.05
33.00 ) 33.00
115114 255.42 1,406.56
468 (54008) (493.48)
8,00 ; - 8.00
24.32 (186:92) (162.61)
1827 (353.14) - (338.87)
- - (0:04) C{0.04)
E (0.01) (0.01)
. (0.03) (0.03)
14.27 (353.47) T (338.50)
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Note 31: FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015

As at March

¥ Millions

Aptii 01, 2018

_'(:ash and cash equivalents at end of year 44.06

Particulars o _ . N_otg | 39, 2016 :
Total equity {sharehol'der's funds as per Indian GAAFP) 4,127.28 4,113.01
Adjustments:
- Retrospective application of service concessionaire arrangements N (251.97) . {284.87)
_Impact of Financial assets recognised under concessionaire arrangement . - . . co T
{Net of Discounting} N 404.60 - . 689.24
Capital Reserve recognised as financ\ial asset (i) {2,122.60) (2,122.60}
Resurfacing provision recognised as per Ind AS 38 (including (iv)
unwinding of discount on resurfacing  provision) ’ A (756.69) (472.39)
Discounting of Retention money payable ' : {v) (3.84) (3.94)
Borrowings {iiii) 36.34 40.21
Tax.effects on adjustments (deferred tax |mpact) 1)) 379.68 ) 192.74
) Total adjustments e o N {2,314.58) (1,961, 42)-'
Total equity (shareholder s funcls as per Ind AS} 1,812.70 : ' 2 151 60
. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income'fo'r the year ended March 31, 2016
' ' o ) ' : . ¥ Millions
For the year
Particulars Note  ended March
31, 2016
Net profit or loss as per Prewous GAAP (Indian GAAP) g ‘ 14.27
. Adjustments;- . . ; L
‘Retrospective application of service concessionaire arrangements ' (i} 32.70
Impact of Financial assets recognised under concessionaire arrangement
(Net of Discounting}) (i} {284.64) -
- Resurfacing provision recogmsed as ber Ind AS 38 {including o
unwinding of discount on resurfacing provision) ' {iv) (284.30)
Borrowings {ii) (3.87)
Tax effects on adjustments (deferred tax impact) B (1} 186.94
Tota! of Adjustment {353.17)
Net profit/loss as per ind AS {338.90)
Material adjustments to the statement of cash flows . 'z Mllllons
Particulars ' : ' I For the year ended March 31, 2016
Prewous Ind AS ) “Ind AS
GAAP adjustments
Net cash flows from operating activities 063.34 (180.30) 783.04
Net cash flows from investing activities (152.88) 1 170.65 17.76
Net cash flows from financing activities (824.64) 965 (814.99)
. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ‘ ‘ . (14.18) 0.00 - - (14.18)
" Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - . S : 5824 S 58.24
. 0.00 44,08
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Note 31 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS
Notes to First time adoption of Ind AS

\

Hote (i} - Application of service concessionaire arrangement as per Appendix A of Ind AS 11

Appendix A of ind AS 11 “Service Concessicnaire Arrangement’ is applicable to the Company which provides guidance on aceounting by the operators
of public-to-private service concession arrangements under which private sector entities participate in the development, financing, operation and

- maintenance of infrastructure for provision of public services. The Company Is engaged in to Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer. (DBFOT)

statements which is in line W|lh the requlrement of Appendlx Aof Ind AS 11.

- & construction activity in respect of its obligation to design, build and finance an asset that it makes availzble the grantor revenue s recognized on a

. stage of completion kasis in accordance with Ind-AS 11 during the censtruction phase of the toll roads.

- an operating and maintenance activity in respect of the assets under the concession durmg the operatlo'nal re\renue is recognized i in accordance with

Ind AS 18.

In return of its activities, the Company receives consideration from users of toli roads as right to receive toll for usage of toll roads in consideration for
the financing and construction of the infrastructure for which an intangible assets is recegnized in the financial statements. Alse as per the concession

arrangement part of the project cost is covered by an unconditional right to receive payments from the grantor i.e. NHAI which has been recognized as
. 'Grant receivable from NHAI' under the head ‘financial assef’ and intangible assets has been recognized to the extent of unguaranteed balance, of which !

the amount is dependent on the extent of use of the mfrastructure

Retrospective application of ‘Service Concessionaire arrangement’ has led to change in the accounting policy of the Gompany as on fthe transition date
for classification, regognition and measurement of construction of assets and maintenance cbligations under the service concession arangements.

. basis the toll roads ihcluding: operation and maintenance thereof during the concession period. After the expity of the concession perlod the Company is .-~
T requlred to handeover the infrastructure i.e. the toll roads to the grantor i.e. National Highway Authorities of India (NHAI) :
As per the sallent feature of the corcession arrangement, the operator has a twofold activity based on which revenue is recogmzed in the ﬂnanrzla{ !

On account of above there has been decrease in intangible assets ari'sing on acceunt of toll collection rights of T 2,122.60 millions as)at March 31,2016

and ¥ 2,122.60 millions as at April 1, 2015 whérein the Company has an unconditional right to receive payments from the grantor i,
been deducted from the cost of intangible assets and recognized as financial assets which earlier under the Indian GAAP was consid
contribution and was recegnized as ‘Capitat Reserve’ in accordance with AS 12 *Accounting for Government grants',

red as promoter's:

. NHAI ‘which has

Further, impact of financial assets recognised under concessionaire arrangement (net of discounting} fresulting in increase in Total Equity ¥ 404.60 .

millions s at March 31, 2016 and ¥ 659.24 millions as at April 1, 2015 and and increase in loss for the year ended March 34,
millions.

-+ ‘Moreover there has been decrease-in intangible assets and decrease in total equity, arising on dccount of appllcatlon of service concession

arrangement, of ¥251.97 millioas as at March 31, 2016 and 284,67 milions as at April 1, 2015 and decrease in loss of ¥32.70 mIIIIons for the year :

- ended March 31, 2016.

Note (||) Rer.ognltlon of deforred tax assets/liability as per Ind AS 12

Ind AS 12 requlres an enity io reecgmze deferred tax using balance sheet approach, whlch is based on {he temporary dlfferencas between the fax base

" of an asset or liability and its camying amount in the financial statements. Deferred tax is provided in full for all temporary differences arising between the

tax pases of assets and fiabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for all deductible
temparary differences including unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits would be available against which
the deductible temperary differences can be utilized.

Under Indian GAAP deferred ax was recognized based on income approach and deferred tax assefs in case of unused tax losses carried forward are

- recognized H there is virlual cerlainly thai sufficient future- taxable income will be available 1o realize the same. Hence on account of above deferred fax

: Under India:_r GAAP, these were capitalised to intangible assets as per AS 16 'Borrowing cost’ as and when incurred.

assels were not recogrized under the Indian GAAP.
On account of above there has been increase in deferred tax asset (net) resulling in increase in Teotal Equity by ¥ 379.68 milfions as at March 31, 2016
and ¥ 192.74 millions as at April 1, 2015 and decrease in foss of T186.94 millions during the year ended March 31, 2016 mainly on accpunt of Ind AS
adjustments pertaining to retrospective application of service concession arrangement and deferred tax asset recogmzed for unused tax losses carried
forward as per Ind AS 12. . - :

Note (iii) - Borrowings

Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount of bgrrowings on initial
recognition. The same 15 recognized as interest as part of the effective interest rate method over the period of the borrowing. ’

On account of above there has been increase in borrowings by ¥36.34 millions as at March 31, 2016 and ¥40.21 milions as at March 31, 2015 with a’

corresponding adjustment to in}angible assets. This resulted in increase in loss by ¥3.87 millions for the year ended March 31, 2016.

N
- Under Indian GAAP retention money was recognized at historical cost and no disceunting was required to be done.

- The discounting"has_ been recognised as a finance cogl The net effect of the above Is decrease in total equity by 2394 millions as af March 31 26/6

Note {iﬂ - Resurfacing obligation recognized as per Ind AS 37

- As per service concession arrangemcnt, the Cempany is obligated to carry out resurfacing of the roads under the cencession pericd every five yoars.
The Company estimates the likely provision required towards resurfacing and accrues the costs on an straight line basis over the pericd at the end of

which resurfacing would be required in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Under Indian GAAP the same obiigation was recognized in the year in which resurfacing was required as per the concession arrangement

. The net effect of the above is decrease in tolal equity by ¥756.69 millions as at March 31,2016 and ¥472.39 millions as at April 1, 2015 with
" corresponding increase in resurfacmg prowsrons {net of unwrndlng discount). This resulted in increase in !oss by ?284 30 millions for the year ended 1

March 31, 2016.

Nofe {v) - Discounting of Retention money

Ind AS 108 requires financial instruments to be measured at fair valus at initial recognition In case for financial liability not at fair value through profit or

loss, however if the fair value of the firancial liability at initial recognition differs from transaction price i.e. fair value of the consideratior| given or received..
than the entity shall recagnize the instruments at its fair value. In the present case the Company has discounted the retention money payable in order to’

refiect the fair value of the retention money at initial recognition. After initial measurement subsequently the liabilities would be recoghized at amorlised
cost.

as at Aprii 1, 2015. _ Vb

D1E of ¥ 284 64 :

T
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Note 32 Income tax expense

{a} Income tax expense

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Total current tax expense

Deferred fax
Decrease/(increase}.in deferred tax assets
{Decrease¥incréase in deferred tax liabilities

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)

Less: Liability/Income Payable/Recoverable from future tariff
Net deferred tax expense/{benefit)

Income tax expense

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit

T Millions

March 31, 2047

March 31, 2016

2787 8.00
27.67 .00
108 159.25
(4.12) (3.38)
(4.90) (162.61)
22.97 {154.61)

multiplied by India's tax rate: .
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Prefit from continuing operations befere income tax expense {306.46) (493.48)
Profit from discontinuing operation befare income tax expense - -
[Fax st fha Tndian tax rate of J808% . {105.08) (70.78)
Tax effect of amoints which are not deductible (taxable) n . :
calculating taxable income:
SEC-37 amount of any liability of a contingent nature - prowsson of
Gratuity & leave enchasement 0.26 0.1
" TAny other exempt income-Mutual Fund Dividend {0.58) (0.04)
Expenses not deblted to statament of P&L and allowable for income
tax - {2.55) (0.71)
SEC-37- Amcunt of any liakility of a cuntlngerlt nature-Provisien - 2.55
SEC-37-Any other amount not allowable under section 37-Service
Tax Credit - Prior Year - - 8.00
Deferred tax asset excess recognised 11419 -
Other temporary differences (10.17) (1.74)
Income Tax under section $15 JB on the book profit (65.40) ..{105.32)|
Deductions allowable under section 115J8 93.27 113.32
Income tax expense charged to statement of Profit and Loss 22.97 {154.61)
(b)'Deferred tax balances
The balance comprises temporary differences atfributable to : T Millions
. As at As at As at
Particulars . Notes March 31, 2097  March 31,2066  April 1, 2015
Unused tax losses carried farward 336.53 402.43 341.68
Toll colléetion rights’ (261.83) (174.37) (77.90)
Other items ‘
Grant receivable from NHA[ (11.11) (121.44) {21 9.95)
~_Borrowings . {11.25) (12.58) (13.91)
Retention Money’ ?ayable 307.51 260.94 162.55
Retirement benefit obligation - 0.68 0.37 0.27
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset 360.53 355.36 192.74
{c ) Movement in deferred tax llability / asset
. Intangible assets  intangible assets
- Unl:zj::;ax - totl collection under NHAl Premium Dther items Total
Particulars rights development .
As at April 01, 2015 ) N 341.68 (77.90} - - (71.04) 192.74
. 'Chargedf(credlted} during the yeér . '
: to profit or loss ) 60,75 (96.47) - - 198.33 162.61
to ather comprehenswe income - : - - - o 0.01
As at March 31, 2016 402.43 {174.37) - - 127,30 355.36
As at April 01, 2016 . 402.43 {174.37) - - 127.30 355.36
C.hargedl(credlled) during the quarter E
T o profit or loss K {655.90) (87.43) - B - 158.26 C4.91
to other comprehensive income - - - - 0.26 0.26
As at March 31, 2017 336.83 {261.83) - - 285.82 360.53
b el T TN
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Note 33 : Assets pledged as security _

T Millions -

The carryingfamounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:
Note | March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Current
‘|Financial assets
“ First charge : T o
Cash and cash equivalents - ba 64.06 4406 | | - 58.24
Bank balances other than above 5b 442 .49 248.42 | 85.08
Other Financial Assets Bc 109.83 161.85 176.22
Non-financial assets
First charge _ '
Other Current Assets o 7 144.00 190.07 © 130.76
Total current assets pledged as security 760.39 " 643.90 460,31
Non-current
First charge _ : . -
Intangible Asset 4 18,041.22 8,204.08 . 8,368.13
Other non current assets 6 0.37 . 0.77 0.87
Total non-current assets pledged as security 8,041.58 8,204.86 8,359.00

Total assets pledged as security

8,801.97

8,848.76 |

~8,819.30 |
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‘Note 34 -Statement of cash received and deposited during demonitisation period - : e
g : - ¥ Millions
Particulars . _ Specified bank Other 1 . Total :
_ ' notes denomination ' '
. . notes )
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.201¢ : 1.81 0.06 1.87 |
(+) Permitted receipts . 6.956 42.35 49.31
(=) Permitted payments - -
{-) Amount deposited in bank ) 8.77 38.97 47.74
|Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - ' 3.44 _ 3.44
" Note 35 - Auditor Remuneration - _ . X Millions
Particulars A P _ : i| - Year ended Year ended
: : 1 March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Audit Fees 0.54 0.48
_|Gertification Fees : . 013 0.03
Qut -Of Pocket Expenses - ‘ ' - 0.01 e .
' ' 0.68 0.48

- Note 36- Consequent upon the de-monetisation of currency notes by the Central Government, toll
collection had been suspended from November 9, 2016 to December 2, 2016 for which the company
has raised claims on NHAI for reimbursement of the expenses incurred during this period as per the
provisions of the Concession Agreement entered into between the company and NHAI read along with

NHAI circular dated November 29, 2016 and December 6, 2016 in this regard. Amount of ¥ 57.93
P mll[lons claimed, being contractually enforceable and certain of recovery has been recogn:sed as aother -

operatlng income.- As at March 31, 2017, ¥ 14.23 millions was receivable and disclosed ‘under Other
Financials Assets — Current.

Note 37 <During: thé period the company had appointed a toll consultant and héve re-estimated the toll
reverue over the remaining concession period. Accordingly, intangible Assets have been amort[sed
prospectively as per the revised estimated toll revenue.

' Note 38 — ToH Opera’uon and Mamtenance Expenses (Refer Note 18) for the year ended March ?1
2017 includes the following: :

) In the month of December 2015, due to heavy floods in the state of Tamil Nadu which had an

impact on the company. THe company had preferred claim for the loss due fo the floods. Pending
settlement of the same, the amounts incurred during the year ended March 31, 2018 and year ended
March 31, 2017 for restoration of damages at site were booked under advances as Claims Receivable.
During the year ended March® 31, 2017, the insurance claims were settled at ¥ 67.91 Millions.
Accordingly the difference of Claims Receivable and the Insurance Claims actually - received,

““amounting to T 34.38 Millions was charged: off to the Statement of Profit & Loss under the head .

Maintenance of Roads formlng part of Toll Operation and Maintenance expenses during the year
ended March 31, 2017.

b) The :company, incurred certain expenditure pertaining to installation of Weigh-in-Motion (WIM)
systems in tolling lanes at toll plazas, an additional foll collection lane including toll management
system and other items amounting to T 35.37 Millions. The same has been charged off to Statement of

Profit and Loss under the head Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the year ended March™

31,2017,

¢} Pursuant to the NHAI Circular dated November 15, 2016, wherein NHAI prescribed that micro
surfacing may be used for the renewal course, maintenance and repair on national highways for at
least 25% to 30% of the total length. Based on the said circular the. company have estlmated
provision for Resurfacmg expenses in the books of accounts,
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Note 39 Previous year figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to make them
comparable to'those for current year. - : _ ‘ L ' ‘

- As per our ;ittéched report of even date -

For M K P 8 & Associates _ Fer and on behalf of the Bogrd
Chartered Accountants . ' ' ' :

‘Firm's Regn. No. 302014E

“ P e, P
;r'en_dra Khandal Ma%;n Bijani -
artner . rettor
Membership No. : 0 Dmé)a 1303%1
Date : 14th April 207 .

Place : Mumbai

Zargna Patel - .
Chief Financial officer  +
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